
MEETING NOTICE: There will be a Regular Meeting of the  
Blanchard /Santa Paula Library District Board of Trustees 

Tuesday, March 28, 2023, at 6:00 p.m. 
Blanchard Community Library 

119 N. 8th St., Santa Paula, CA 93060. 
 

AGENDA 
 

THIS MEETING WILL BE HELD IN PERSON AT THE LIBRARY 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER 
 

B. APPROVAL OF THE ORDER OF THE AGENDA 
 

C. PUBLIC COMMENT  
Public comments are welcomed and encouraged.  The President of the Board will 
acknowledge visitors wishing to speak on a topic not on the regular Board agenda.  
The Board is prohibited from taking action on any item not part of the printed 
agenda.  When addressing the Library Board, please stand to be recognized by the 
Board President, state your full name and address, and direct your comments to the 
entire Library Board.  

 
For members in the audience wishing to speak on an Agenda item, the President 
will announce the item and request the staff or a Board member to give a brief 
summary. The Board will have an opportunity to ask questions, following which the 
President will ask whether anyone else wishes to comment.  Then the Board will 
discuss the item and take the appropriate action.  

 
The Library Board of Trustees requests that speakers conduct themselves with 
civility and keep in mind the rights and well-being of all members of the Santa 
Paula community. 

 
D. STAFF RECOGNITION 

 
E. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

a. Approval of Minutes: Meeting of February 28, 2023 
 

F. REPORTS 
a. Financial Reports—February 2023 
b. Friends of the Library 

                                              
G. BOARD/ADMINISTRATION COMMENTS, CONCERNS, HANDOUT 

 
H. OLD BUSINESS 

a. Status of Remodel Project/Delay Start Date (information, discussion, possible 
action) 

b. Approval of Remodel Painting Bid (information, discussion, possible action) 
c. Approval of Remodel Framing Bid (information, discussion, possible action) 



I. NEW BUSINESS 
a. Discussion of Educators’ Memorial Proposed by Joe Juaregui (information, 

discussion, possible action) 
b. Consideration of Revised Proposal for Mechanical Engineering Services 

(information, discussion, possible action)  
 

J. REPORTS (CONTINUED) 
a. Staff Reports 

i. Public Services Reports 
ii. Facilities Report 

iii. District Director’s Report 
b. Board Committees 

i. Finance 
ii. Human Resources 

1. Report form Human Resources Committee on Proposed Revisions to 
Various Job Description and Possible Adoption (information, 
discussion, possible action) 

iii. Strategic Plan Teams 
1. Visioning/Strategic Plan  
2. Fundraising/Grants 

                   
K. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS  

 
L. UPCOMING MEETING DATES  

Regular Meeting April 25, 2023 
 

M. ADJOURNMENT 
 
In compliance with the Ralph M. Brown Act and the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need a disability-related 
modification, accommodation, or other special assistance to participate in this meeting, please contact Ned Branch, 
District Director of the Blanchard/Santa Paula Community Library, at 805-525-3615 x301.  Notification 48 hours 
before the meeting will enable reasonable arrangements to be made.  
  



 
REGULAR MEETING OF MARCH 28, 2023 
E. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
 

1. Approval of Minutes 
a. Regular Meeting of February 28, 2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

REVISED MINUTES SEPTEMBER 27, 2022 
 MOVED SECONDED YES NO ABSTAIN ABSENT 
Barrows       
Beardsley       
Merson       
Reyes       
Zamora       
       



MINUTES of the Regular Meeting of the Blanchard/Santa Paula Library District Board of 
Trustees, Tuesday, February 28, 2023 

    1 

A. CALL TO ORDER--- The Meeting was called to order at 6:09 PM by Board President 
Miriam Zamora. Trustees Geraldine Barrows, Lori Beardsley, and Ron Merson were in 
attendance, a quorum established.  Trustee Ricardo Reyes was absent.  District Director 
Ned Branch was present.  

B. APPROVAL OF THE ORDER OF AGENDA-  
A motion to approve the order of the agenda was made by Trustee Merson and seconded 
by Trustee Beardsley. 

Yes: Trustees Barrows, Beardsley, Merson, and Zamora 
Nos: None 
Absent: Trustee Reyes 

C. PRESENTATION OF A DONATION FROM THE BLANCHARD COMMUNITY 
LIBRARY ENDOWMENT COMMITTEE 
Endowment President Craig Held presented a check for $16,000 to President of the 
Board, Miriam Zamora on behalf of the Endowment Committee. 

D. PUBLIC COMMENT ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
Mr. Joe Juargui gave a brief presentation for an Educator’s memorial to be housed at the 
library.  The board agreed to put his proposal on the agenda to be considered at the next 
meeting. 

E. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
a. A motion was made by Trustee Barrows to approve the minutes of the meeting of 

January 24, 2023 and seconded by Trustee Merson. 
Yes:  Trustees Barrows, Beardsley, Merson, and Zamora 
No:  None 
Absent: Trustee Reyes 

b. A motion was made to approve the minutes of the special meeting of February 16, 
2023, by Trustee Merson and seconded by Trustee Barrows. 
Yes:  Trustees Barrows, Beardsley, Merson, and Zamora 
No:  None 
Absent: Trustee Reyes 

F. REPORTS 
District Director Branch presented the January financial statements and reviewed the 
significant discrepancies. 
Trustee Merson made a motion to accept and file the January financial statements and 
Trustee Barrows seconded the motion. 

Yes:  Trustees Barrows, Beardsley, Merson, and Zamora 
No:  None 



MINUTES of the Regular Meeting of the Blanchard/Santa Paula Library District Board of 
Trustees, Tuesday, February 28, 2023 

    2 

Absent: Trustee Reyes 
 

G. BOARD/ADMINISTRATION COMMENTS, CONCERNS, HANDOUTS  ---  None 
 
H. OLD BUSINESS  

a. Status of Remodel Project—District Director Branch noted that the Project 
Manager had not completed the timeline for the remodel project because two 
additional bids for painting had not yet been received.  

b. Information on Cost of Construction Documents for Community Hall—Prior to 
discussing the topic, Trustee Zamora left the room. 
District Director Branch indicated that, although the Board approved the Proposal 
for Professional Services submitted by Anderson, Kulwiec, Appleby Architects at 
the January meeting, he had contacted another architectural firm for pricing to 
determine with the Anderson, Kulwiec, Appleby was “fair and reasonable.” The 
information he received was that the costs already paid to Anderson, Kulwiec, 
Appleby plus the fees in the approved proposal were less than the fee estimate 
from the second firm. On that basis, he concluded that the proposal from 
Anderson, Kulwiec, Appleby was fair and reasonable, The Board took no further 
action. 

c. Appointment of Justin Formanek as Interim Library Director—A the special 
meeting held on February 16, 2023, The Board discussed appointing Justin 
Formanek as the Interim Library Director, but because the wording of agenda 
item was not sufficiently specific, the Board did not put the matter to a vote.  
Trustee Merson moved to appoint Justin Formanek as the Interim Library 
Director upon the departure of District Director Branch at a pay increase of 
approximately 10%; Trustee Barrows seconded the motion. 
Yes:  Trustees Barrows, Beardsley, Merson, and Zamora 
No:  None 
Absent: Trustee Reyes 

 
I. NEW BUSINESS 

a. District Director Branch indicated that he had not yet received the revised 
proposal for Mechanical Engineering Services; consequently, the matter was 
taken off the agenda. 

b. District Director Branch informed the Board that staff revised job description for 
the positions of Library Assistant I, II, and II and had drafted a job description for 
a new position of Assistant Librarian. He requested the Board to refer the job 



MINUTES of the Regular Meeting of the Blanchard/Santa Paula Library District Board of 
Trustees, Tuesday, February 28, 2023 

    3 

descriptions to the Human Resources Committee for review and a 
recommendation to the Board. 
Trustee Barrows moved that the job descriptions be referred to the Human 
Resources Committee; the motion was seconded by Trustee Merson. 
Yes:  Trustees Barrows, Beardsley, Merson, and Zamora 
No:  None 
Absent: Trustee Reyes 

 
J. REPORTS (continued) 

a. Staff Reports 
i. Public services – Reports from Adult Services, Youth Services, and 

Literacy Services were received. 
ii. Facilities Report – covered in Old Business 

iii. District Director’s Report -  
Statistics were reviewed. 
District Director Branch reported that a Library Assistant I had resigned 
because of family issues and would be replaced. 

b. Board Committees 
i. Finance --- None 

ii. Human Resources --- None 
iii. Strategic Plan Teams –  

1. Visioning/Strategic Plan – None 
2. Fundraising/Grants – None 

K. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS--- The Board agreed to include the following future 
Agenda items: Update on the library renovations, a timeline for the remodeling project, 
and the Educators’ Memorial as presented by Joe Juaregui. 

L. UPCOMING MEETING DATE--- The next regular meeting March 28, 2023 at 6:00 
PM. 

M. ADJOURNMENT---There being no further business, the Regular Meeting was 
adjourned at 7:30 pm 

Motion to approve by Trustee Mersom; Seconded by Trustee Barrows 
Yes:  Trustees Barrows, Beardsley, Merson, and Zamora 
No:  None 
Absent: Trustee Reyes 



MINUTES of the Regular Meeting of the Blanchard/Santa Paula Library District Board of 
Trustees, Tuesday, February 28, 2023 

    4 

 
 
 
_________________________________________ 
Library Board Clerk 

 
   ATTEST:  
 
 
______________________________________________________ 
District Director 



REGULAR MEETING OF MARCH 28, 2023 
F(a). REPORTS: FINANCIAL REPORTS 
 

1. Receive and file February 2023 financial reports 
 
 
 
  

 
 MOVED SECONDED YES NO ABSTAIN ABSENT 
Barrows       
Beardsley       
Merson       
Reyes       
Zamora       
       



























REGULAR MEETING OF MARCH 28, 2023 
G. BOARD/ADMINISTRATION COMMENTS, CONCERNS, HANDOUTS 
  



REGULAR MEETING OF MARCH 28, 2023 
H(a) OLD BUSINESS: STATUS OF REMODEL PROJECT/DELAY START DATE 
 
The lead time for the new lights and for the carpet has increased from six weeks to ten weeks. A 
ten-week delay would put the start of work to mid-June. However, the busiest season for the 
library is summer when the library runs the Childrens’ Summer Reading Program, the Teen 
Summer Reading Program, and the Adult Summer Reading Program as well as Lunch @ the 
Library program. The library also holds Family Evening events in the summer. Staff want to delay 
the start of work until the beginning of August to accommodate these programs. 
 
In order to purchase the long-lead materials at the quoted prices, the contractors will probably 
require a deposit to order the materials now even though they won’t be needed until Fall. If the 
materials are not ordered now, the library runs the risk of price increases. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Postpone the start of the remodel project to August and authorize the 
District Director or Interim Director to deposit funds with the contractors to purchase the materials 
now. 
 
  



Blanchard Community Library Interior Upgrades 3/23/2023

RFB List
119 N. 8th Street, Santa Paula CA 93060 

RFB # Description Bid Amount Status Action Req'd Start Date Remarks

1 Roof Replacement 392,773.00 Need Authorization Notice to Proceed TBD Including 10-1-22 increase of $7,200 
to proceed & timing

2 HVAC Replacement
  Name of Vendor? ? Approved Contract? Name of Contractor?

3 PV/Battery Energy Stg. Sys. Prepare RFP RFP required TBD
  Name of Supplier? Not avail. to date
  Name of Supplier? Not avail. to date
  Name of Supplier? Not avail. to date

4 Electrical Bids received 11/9/22
  Venco Electric Inc. 255,581.00  Board Appr. Sign Contract 8/15/2023 Provide deposit for long lead items
  Blum & Sons Electric Inc. 273,558.69 Issue Notice to Proceed 8/1/2023

Lead Electrical Panels 4-6 weeks Order by 6/15/2023
Items Light Fixtures 8-10 weeks Order by 5/15/2023

Under carpet cabling system (TBD)est. 8-10 weeks Order by 5/15/2023 Allow 15% Contingency to cover pot-
  ential cost increase for substitution

5 Framing & Drywall Bids received 2/x/22 & 
  Ardalan Construction Co. 92,000.00 Req. Board Review &
  David Atkins Construction 71,352.00 Approval Sign Contract 8/15/2023 Issue Notice to Proceed 8/1/2023

Lead Doors 4-6 weeks Order by 8/15/2023 Based on current project
Items

6 Flooring Bids received 11/9/22
  Ardalan Construction Co. 132,000.00  Board Appr. Sign Contract 10/15/2023 Issue Notice to Proceed 10/1/2023
  David Atkins Construction 155,291.00

Lead Carpet Tile 6-10 weeks Order 1 box now 3/30/2023 New color wave/spec (same line)
Items Order by 7/15/2023 Selected sample

7 Painting Bids received 2/22/23 & 2/25/23
  D & J Painting 36,910.00 Req. Board Appr. Sign Contract 11/1/2023 Issue Notice to Proceed 10/15/2023
  Van Guard Painting 58,600.00
  Titus Painting 132,218.00

Summary of Actionable Items:

# Subject Description
1) Roof Replacement Verification of 101 Roofing (Bonds & Insurance requirements are met)
2) Electrical Works  Verification of Venco Electric Inc. (Bonds & Insurance requirements are met), confirm start date, 

confirm lead time on under-carpet cable tray and confirm construction schedule with all trades. 
3) Flooring Verification of Ardalan Construction Co. (Bonds & Insurance requirements are met),

confirm schedule/coordinate with all trades.
4) Painting Board approval of bid, sign contract (upon selection, verification of Bonds & Insurance Requirements are met),

and confirm locations of accent color walls. Confirm schedule/coordinate with all trades.
5) Framing and Drywall Board review, approval of bid, and sign contract (upon selection, verification of Bonds & Insurance Require-

ments are met), confirm schedule/coordinate with all trades including initial demolition.
6) Loose Furniture Removal Who will be the coordinator for the removal of all loose furniture items and temporary storage?
7) Library Operation Hours What are the hours of operation for the Library during the construction? Limited staff will be working 

in the back areas only, and the Library will be closed to the public?
8) Library Coordinator Who will be the person in charge for the Library during the construction period?

Note:
Upon approval of all the contractors, completion of all the Notices to Proceed, and verification of the contractor requirements, RWC will 
follow up/confirm the start date based on lead times, coordinate the work schedule and prepare the overall project timeline.





REGULAR MEETING OF MARCH 28, 2023 
H(b) OLD BUSINESS: APPROVAL OF REMODEL PAINTING BID 

The Rough Order of Magnitude (ROM) in the remodeling budget for flooring was $57,600. The 
first two bids were for $145,000 and $155,000. The project manager contacted other qualified 
painting contractors to secure additional bidders. The low bid is  $36, 910. The firm that 
submitted the low bid is working on a contract for the City to paint the Boys and Girls Club. Our 
project manager is overseeing that project as well and has found the bidder to be competent. 

RECOMMENDATION: Authorize the District Director to execute a contract with D & J 
Painting for $36,910 in a form approved by the library general counsel. 

MOVED SECONDED YES NO ABSTAIN ABSENT 
Barrows 
Beardsley 
Merson 
Reyes 
Zamora 



Thank you for your business!

D&J Painting Lic#1030624

3067 Fitzgerald Road
Simi Valley, CA  93065
(805) 285-3657
dandjpaintingca@gmail.com

Estimate
ADDRESS
Christina Grina
RWC
216 N 8th Street
PO Box 1025
Santa Paula, Ca  93061
805-671-9811

ESTIMATE # 1295
DATE 02/22/2023

EXPIRATION 
DATE

03/22/2023

  

DATE ACTIVITY / DESCRIPTION QTY RATE AMOUNT

02/22/2023 Sales
Blanchard Community Library Interior Upgrades
111 North 8th St Santa Paula, CA 
We hereby propose to furnish necessary 
equipment, materials and perform all labor and 
work necessary in accordance with professional 
trade standards the following: 
Interior Painting:  Prep and protect all surfaces 
not to be painted including stacks. 
Address minor patches, and sand as 
necessary. Apply full prime and two (2) finish 
coats to all interior ceilings, walls, doors, jambs, 
and interior only windows per plans and job 
walk.  Clean and remove all debris upon 
completion.  All work to be completed during 
regular business hours.
Job is Prevailing Wage
EXCLUDES: Exterior windows, cabinets and 
any item not called out above.

1 36,910.00 36,910.00

 

Estimates are valid for 30 days.

Terms: 10% Deposit, remainder upon 
completion unless otherwise stated by D&J 
Painting.

Change orders subject to additional fees of up 
to 5% of total.

Liability and Workers Compensation insurance 

SUBTOTAL 36,910.00
TAX 0.00
TOTAL $36,910.00



Thank you for your business!

certificates are available upon request. 

Warranty: Labor is warrantied for one year. All 
materials guaranteed against failing per 
manufactures warranty. 
Client supplied materials are not warrantied.

Accepted By Accepted Date



REGULAR MEETING OF MARCH 28, 2023 
H(c) OLD BUSINESS: APPROVAL OF REMODEL FRAMING BID 

The Rough Order of Magnitude (ROM) in the remodeling budget for framing was $57,600. The 
first two bids were for $93,000 and $85,000. The project manager contacted other qualified 
painting contractors to secure additional bidders. The low bid is from David Atkin Construction 
in the amount of $71,352. 

RECOMMENDATION: Authorize the District Director to execute a contract with David Atkin 
Construction for $71,352 in a form approved by the library general counsel. 

MOVED SECONDED YES NO ABSTAIN ABSENT 
Barrows 
Beardsley 
Merson 
Reyes 
Zamora 





















REGULAR MEETING OF MARCH 28, 2023 
I(a) NEW BUSINESS: 

At its last meeting, the Board received a suggestion from Mr. Joe Juaregui regarding an Educators’   
, which would possibly be housed at the library. A more recent version of the proposal is attached.  

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that a working group be convened to consider 
suggestions and options. The group would consist of a representative from the library and 
representatives of other interested parties to consider options and make recommendations. 

MOVED SECONDED YES NO ABSTAIN ABSENT 
Barrows 
Beardsley 
Merson 
Reyes 
Zamora 







REGULAR MEETING OF FEBRUARY 27, 2023 
I(b) NEW BUSINESS: CONSIDERATION OF REVISED PROPOSAL FOR MECHANICAL 
ENGINEERING SERVICES 
 
The project determining the specifications for the scope of work for the bid for the installation of 
new HVAC equipment has become more complicated because of recommended changes to the 
design of the HVAC system to include using heat pumps instead of gas-fired units and adding 
additional units to adequately ventilate the meeting rooms. In addition, the engineer is 
recommending the addition of rigid foam insulation to the roof when it is replace; however, the 
additional thickness of the roofing material will require additional design work to accommodate 
the added height and weight. Consequently, the mechanical engineering firm has submitted a 
revised proposal, which is attached. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the Board approve the revised proposal (attached), 
the cost of which will be partially covered by the Building Forward grant received from the 
California State Library. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 
 MOVED SECONDED YES NO ABSTAIN ABSENT 
Barrows       
Beardsley       
Merson       
Reyes       
Zamora       
       



 
 
838 East Front Street 
Ventura, California 93001-2925 
(805) 653-1722  
phil@aegroupme.com 
website: https://aegroupme.com/ 
 
 
March 13, 2023 
 
 
Ned Branch 
District Director 
Blanchard / Santa Paula Library District   transmitted by email 
 
SUBJECT:  PROPOSAL FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES – BLANCHARD LIBRARY 
HVAC SYSTEMS 
 
Dear Ned, 
 
This letter is a formal proposal and fee schedule for the engineering services related to the 
HVAC systems at the Blanchard Library in Santa Paula.  We will provide the following: 
 
1.  Site Visit.  We will visit the site to look at the building and its HVAC systems and review 
available plans and information. 
 
2.  Energy Calculations.  We will perform ASHRAE heating and cooling load calculations for 
the building to determine equipment sizing.  It is understood that the energy performance 
envelope is expected to improve significantly with the addition of new roof insulation.   
 
3.  Mechanical Plans.  We will prepare mechanical plans indicating the mechanical work for the 
project, understood to include replacement of six existing HVAC units and the addition of two 
new rooftop units for the classroom and the meeting room.  Also included will be plumbing 
connections and specifications for all equipment and materials and work to be performed.  Also 
included will be details and specifications for a new roof access ladder.  
  
4.  Structural.  Included will be structural calculations and details for supporting the new rooftop 
HVAC units, plus analysis of the structural ability of the existing roof framing to support new 
roofing with added insulation (roofing design by Anderson Kulwiec Appleby Architects).  
Structural engineering will be performed by Larry Hauer under contract to AE Group. 
 
5.  Electrical Plans.  Included will be electrical plans indicating connections for the HVAC units.  
Electrical engineering will be performed by Parviz Ebrahimi, Inc under contract to AE Group.   



March 13, 2023 
 
Ned Branch – Library HVAC  
 
Page 2 
 
 
6.  Coordination.  Included is coordination with your office, site visits, plan check corrections, 
attendance at meetings, review of submittals, responses to requests for information, and 
preparation of punch lists. 
 
Exclusions.  Architectural services associated with new roofing and roof insulation, permit fees, 
and any services not specifically delineated above.  Engineering services in addition to those 
described in items 1-6 can be provided; however, scope and fee would need to be negotiated. 
 
Fee.  For items 1-6 – fixed fee of $23,610 ($15,800 for mechanical engineering and overall 
coordination, $3,960 for structural engineering, $3,850 for electrical engineering).  Any extra 
services will be performed on an hourly rate basis at the following rates: registered mechanical 
engineers - $240/hr; engineering assistants - $190/hr.  Out of pocket expenses, including 
subconsultant fees – actual cost plus 10%.   These are the rates in effect presently and are subject 
to change in the future. 
 
Terms and Conditions.  These services will be performed under an agreement for the provision 
of professional engineering services between AE Group Mechanical Engineers, Inc (Engineer) 
and the Blanchard / Santa Paula Library District (Client), with the understanding that the 
following terms and conditions apply: 
 
Payment Schedule.  We will invoice your office monthly for services provided.  It is agreed that 
payments will be made to our office within 15 days of your receipt of invoices.  Unpaid balances 
beyond 45 days from invoice date will be due and will bear interest at 1.5% per month. 
 
Indemnification:  The Client agrees, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to indemnify, defend, 
and hold harmless the Engineer, and its employees, agents, and subconsultants from and against 
any and all claims, damages, liability or cost, including reasonable attorney’s fees and defense 
costs, arising out of or in any way connected with this project or the performance, by any of the 
parties above named, of the services under this Agreement, excepting only those damages, 
liabilities or costs attributable to the sole negligence of the Engineer.  
 
Risk Allocation:  In recognition of the relative risks and benefits of the project to both the Client 
and the Engineer, the risks have been allocated such that the Client agrees, to the fullest extent 
permitted by law, to limit the liability of the Engineer and his employees, agents and 
subconsultants to the Client for any and all claims, losses, costs, damages of any nature 
whatsoever, or claims expenses from any cause or causes, including attorney’s fees and costs and 
expert witness fees and costs, so that the total aggregate liability of the Engineer and his 
employees, agents, and subconsultants shall not exceed $50,000 or fees received, whichever is 
less.  It is intended that this limitation apply to any and all liability or cause of action however 
alleged or arising, unless otherwise prohibited by law. 



March 13, 2023 
 
Ned Branch – Library HVAC  
 
Page 3 
 
 
Jobsite Safety:  The Client agrees that neither the professional activities of the Engineer, nor the 
presence of the Engineer or his employees, agents, and subconsultants at a construction site, shall 
relieve the General Contractor and any other entity of their obligations, duties and 
responsibilities, including, but not limited to, construction means, methods, sequences, 
techniques or procedures necessary for performing, superintending or coordinating all portions of 
the work of construction in accordance with the contract documents and any health or safety 
precautions required by any regulatory agencies.  The Engineer and his personnel have no 
authority to exercise any control over any construction contractor or other entity or their 
employees in connection with their work or any health or safety precautions.     
 
Termination: Either the Client or the Engineer may terminate this Agreement at any time with or 
without cause upon giving the other party 7 days prior written notice.  The Client shall within 10 
days of termination pay the Engineer for all services rendered and all costs incurred up to the 
date of termination. 
 
Mediation:  In an effort to resolve any claims or conflicts that arise during the design or 
construction of the project or following the completion of the project, the Client and Engineer 
agree that all disputes between them arising out of or relating to the Agreement shall first be 
submitted to nonbinding mediation unless the parties mutually agree otherwise.  
 
We look forward to working with you on this project.   
 
If you have any questions, please call me. 
 

 
______________________________     approved________________________________ ____ 
AE Group Mechanical Engineers, Inc.                   Blanchard / Santa Paula Library District date 
(Engineer)             (Client) 
 
AEGME/mos 



 
 
  

 
 MOVED SECONDED YES NO ABSTAIN ABSENT 
Barrows       
Beardsley       
Merson       
Reyes       
Zamora       
       



 
REGULAR MEETING OF FEBRUARY 27, 2023 
J(a)(i) REPORTS: PUBLIC SERVICES 
 
 
 
  



FEBRUARY 2023 ADULT SERVICES REPORT 

Programs & Services 
CA Poet Laureate Lee Herrick 
As a result of the Blanchard Community Library’s collaboration with the 
Ventura County Poetry Project, we welcomed newly appointed California 
Poet Laureate Lee Herrick to the Ventura County Agriculture Museum 
(who graciously offered to host) for a reading and signing. A former Fresno 
Poet Laureate, Herrick’s work “is a Whitmanesque celebration of the best 
spirit of our state, the vibrancy of the Central Valley, and ourselves.” 
 
 

 
  

Collection 

170 adult-oriented items were added to the collection in February 2023.   

  

5 of the items with the most checkouts for the past 90 days

 



 
Youth Services Report 

February  2023 
February  Crafts:  196 
(Groundhog Day, Chinese New Year, Hedgehogs, Valentine’s Day) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Bulletin Board 
Valentines, Black history Month 

 
 

Book Displays 
Chinese New Year, Presidents Day, Valentines, Black History Month   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   
       
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

1. Family Programs-  
                      

Wednesday, February 15 Family Movie  28 
   Lyle Lyle Crocodile   9 adults  19 Children 
     

2. Ongoing Programs –  
a. Story time        182 

  
Tuesday 2/7, 2/14, 2/28   11 adults 11 children 
(Bilingual)  
 
Wednesday 2/1, 2/8   44 adults 82 children 
(Preschool)  2/15, 2/22     
 
Saturday 2/4, 2/18   10 adults  24 children 
       

 
b. LEGO        169     

2/1, 2/6, 2/8 2/13,  53 adults 116 children 
  2/15, 2/22, 2/27 

c. Reading with PAWS     15 
   2/11, 2/25    5 adults 11 children 
 

d. Teen Scene  2/9 Origami Bookmarks    2 teens & 1 adult 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   



 
Circulation-JUV/YA Juvenile Fiction Juvenile Non-Fiction Total 
January 1000 252 1252 
February 963 271 1234 
March 1,483 376 1859 
April 25-30 306 100 406* 
May 1,091 463 1,554 
June 2,725 527 3,252 
July 2,035 371 2,406 
August 1,554 401 1,955 
September 1,299 339 1,698 
October 1,597 387 1,978 
November 1,584 365 1,949 
December 1,039 233 1,272 
January 1,342 385 1,727 
February 1,152 283 1,435 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
New Patron 
Registrations 

Adult Juvenile E-card Total 

January 46 8  54 
February 48 18  66 
March 45 24  69 
April  1-21 37 10  47 
May 44 37  81 
June 73 72  145 
July 47 37  84 
August 46 14 10 70 
September 38 21 18 77 
October 49 29 18 96 
November 61 26 8 95 
December 24 8 17 49 
January 34 17 19 70 
February 34 13 11 58 
 
 
 
 
 

New Books Juv Fic Juv Non-Fic YA Fic Ya Non-Fic J DVD J BKCD Total 
July 73 26 75 52 4 0 226 
August 35 17 7 1 2 0 62 
September 77 12 1 0 0 0 90 
October 104 21 1 1 2 0 129 
November 41 22 11 1 6 0 81 
December 58 32 5 2 2 0 99 
January 104 35 11 15 3 0 168 
February 43 22 6 3 31 0 105 



 
Circulation 
Adult 
Fic 

Adult 
NF 

Large 
Print 

Spanish 
Fiction 

Spanish 
Non-Fic 

BKCD DVD/ 
BLURAY 

MusicCD  

353 198 43 10 14 4 145 0  
Magazines Hotspots Kindles & 

Laptop 
Kiosk 

Connectivi
ty Kits 

Library of 
Things 

YA Fic YA Non-
Fic 

YA Fic 
Spanish 
 

YA NF 
Spanish 

3 23 9 12 2 47 10 0 0 
J BKCD J DVD/ 

BLURAY 
J 
Music CD 

Juv  Fic Juv NF Juv Fic 
Spanish 

Juv NF 
Spanish 

J 
Magazine 

Total 

0 71 0 1022 254 83 19 0 2322 
 

Discards Adult Fic Adult Non-
Fic 

DVD YA Juv Fic Juv Non-Fic Total 

January 357 40 0 0 0 0 397 
February 0 424 0 0 0 0 424 
March 0 546 0 0 0 0 546 
April 0 59 0 0 0 0 59 
May 0 3 0 0 0 0 3 
June 2 0 0 0 2 0 4 
July 1 1 0 0 1 0 3 
August 0 1 0 0 1 0 2 
September 1 0 0 0 2 0 3 
October 2 1 0 0 1 0 4 
November 0 13 0 20 6 2 41 
December 0 60 0 0 36 40 136 
January 105 40 0 2 9 2 158 
February 120 30 0 41 30 2 223 
 

 

 





REGULAR MEETING OF FEBRUARY 27, 2023 
J(a)(ii) REPORTS: FACILITIES 
  



REGULAR MEETING OF FEBRUARY 27, 2023 
J(a)(iii) REPORTS: DISTRICT DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

1. Statistics
2. Staff Changes:









REGULAR MEETING OF FEBRUARY 27, 2023 
J(b)(ii) REPORTS: HUMAN RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
 
 
The Human Resources Committee met to review revised/new job descriptions as drafted by staff 
and to report to the full Board with its recommendation.. 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 MOVED SECONDED YES NO ABSTAIN ABSENT 
Barrows       
Beardsley       
Merson       
Reyes       
Zamora       
       


























	Blank Page



